Brunswick County--Register of Deeds Robert J. Robinson Inst #32748 Book 1348Page 332 12/17/1999 01:21pm Rec#

BY-LAWS

of

BONAPARTH'S RETREAT PROPERTY OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.

A Mon-Profit Corporation

1991

TOTAL CK AMTHOC CK# 4508

CASH REF BY

Inst # 32748 Book 1348Page: 333

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	_
NAME AND LOCATION	.1
PURPOSE	1
DRFINITIONS	1
MEMBERSHIP	2
MKETINGS	Ω
DIRECTORS	
OFFICERS	
OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION	
MANAGEMENTI KAPENSES	
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	
AMENDMINTS.	
CONFLICTS	
COMMITTEES:	
INTERPRETATIVE PROVISIONS.	
	4.4

BY-LAWS OF

BONAPARTE'S RETREAT I PROPERTY OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.

A Non-Profit Corporation

ARTICLE 1. NAME AND LOCATION.

The name of this corporation is Bonaparte's Retreat I Property Owner's Association, Inc. Its principal office is located at Calabash, Shallotte Township, Brunswick County, North Carolina.

ARTICLE 2. PURPOSE.

The purpose of this corporation is to conserve the environment and amenities of the residential community known as Bonaparte's Retreat I, to provide for the preservation, maintenance and management of certain common areas located within said community, and to promote the health, safety and welfare of the owners, their licensees and invitees, of said community, all consistent with the provisions of its Certification, these By-Laws and the Declaration of covenants and restrictions hereinafter mentioned, and as a membership corporation no part of whose income or assets shall, at any time, inure to the benefit of or to be distributed to any of its members.

ARTICLE 3. DEFINITIONS.

Section 1. Reservations and Restrictions

"Reservations and Restrictions"as used herein, means those certain restrictions and reservations made the 21st day of May, 1874 and included in the deed to Marjorie Fallon DeRonda and as modified in Book 537 at page 544, by Ocean Side corporation, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina, which reservations and restrictions are recorded in the Register of Deed's Office of Brunswick County, North Carolina.

Section 2. Corporation

"Corporation" or "Association", as used herein, means Bonaparte's Retreat I Property Owner's Association, as incorporated in North Carolina, and its successors and assigns, or, upon merger or consolidation with another corporation or corporations, the corporation surviving such merger or resulting from such consolidation.

Section. 3. Other Definitions

Unless it is plainly evident from the context that a different meaning is intended, all other terms used herein shall have the same meaning they are defined to have in the Reservations and Restrictions.

ARTICLE 4. MEMBERSHIP.

Section 1. Association Membership

The Association shall have one class of voting membership. Members shall be all owners who shall be entitled to one vote for each assessment. When more than one person holds an interest in any lot, all such persons shall be members. The vote for such lot shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one vote be cast per assessment.

Section 2. Membership Certificates

There shall be no membership certificates. The Warranty Deed conveying the lot to an individual owner shall constitute proof and evidence of membership in the Association.

Section 3. Liquidation Rights

In the event of any voluntary or involuntary dissolution of the Association, each Member of the Association shall be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Association available for distribution to the Member an amount equal to that proportion of such assets which the number of eligible votes held by such Member bears to the total number of eligible votes held by all members.

ARTICLE 8. MERTINGS.

Section 1. Place of Meetings

Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office or place of business of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the membership as may be designated by the Executive Board of the Association.

Section 2. Annual Meetings

The first regular annual meeting of the Members shall be held within Three Hundred Sixty-Five (365) days following the initial organization meeting and adoption of these By-Laws. Thereafter, meetings will be held every three months.

Section 3. Special Meetings

It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Members as directed by resolution of the Executive Board or upon a petition signed by at least one-third (1/3) of the Members and presented to the

Secretary.

The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business, hall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings

It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail, post paid, a notice of each annual or special meeting stating th purpose thereof as well as the time and place where it is to be held, to each member at his address as it appears in the records of the Association at the time of the mailing at least fifteen (15) but not more than thirty (30) days prior to such meeting.

Section 5. Quorum

The presence, either in person or by proxy, of Members representing at least twenty per cent (20%) of the eligible votes held by the then Members of record shall be requisite for, and shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings of Members. If the number of members at a meeting drops below the quorum and the question of a lack of a quorum is raised, no business may thereafter be transacted.

Section 6. Adjourned Meetings

If any meeting of Members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the Members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may, except as otherwise provided by Law, adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called. The quorum required for an such adjourned meeting shall be reduced to fifty percent (50%) of the quorum required at the immediately preceding meeting which failed for lack of a quorum to do business.

Section 7. Voting

Each member shall have a right to cast one vote per assessment, including any special or additional assessments, or increases to existing assessments. All property owners shall have a right to a mail-in vote and a majority decision will be the determining factor.

Section 8. Loss of Right to Vote

The vote of any Member who is shown on the books or records of the Association to be more than sixty (60) days delinquent in any payment due the Association shall not be an eligible vote and shall not be counted for purposes of deciding any question so long as such delinquency is not cured; nor shall such member be eligible to be elected to the Board of Directors.

Section 9. Proxies

A member may appoint any other member or the Declarant or the Management Agent as his Proxy. Any proxy must be in writing and must be filed with the Secretary in form approved by the Board of Directors before the appointed time approved by the Board of Directors before the appointed time of each meeting. Unless limited by its terms, any proxy shall continue until revoked by a written notice of revocation filed with the Secretary or by the death of the member. In no case may a member cast, in addition to his own vote, more than one vote as proxy for another member.

Section 10. Order of Business

The order of business at annual meetings of members shall be as follows:

- (a) Roll call and certification of proxies.
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of meeting.
- (c) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting.
 (d) Reports of officers, if any.
 (e) Reports of committees, if any.
 (f) Undinished business.

- (g) New business.
- (h) Appointment of inspectors of election.(i) Election of directors.

In the case of special meetings, items (a) through (e) should be applicable and thereafter the agenda shall consist of the items specified in the notice of meeting.

ARTICLE 7. DIRECTORS

Section. 1. Number and Qualification of Directors

The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Executive Board composed of at least six (6) and not more than seven (7) persons as determined by resolution of the members.

Section 2. Initial Directors

The names and addresses of the seven (7) initial directors selected by Declarant to act as such until the first or next annual meeting, or until such time as their successors are duly chosen and qualified are:

(This Page Left Blank For Future Use)

Page 5

Inst # 32748 Book 1348Page: 338

Section 3. Responsibility of Duty

The Executive Board's duties shall be: (a) Care, upkeep and maintenance of the common areas and lots in a manner consistent with law and the provisions of these By-Laws and the reservations and restrictions, (b) Determination and collection of annual assessments and special assessments from members by directors and officers, and the maintenance of a roster of assessments and charges applicable to each lot and the enforcement of liens therefore in a manner consistent with law and the provisions of these By-Laws and the reservations and restrictions.

Section 4. Management Agent

The Executive Board may, but need not, employ for the Association a Management Agent (the "Management Agent") at a rate of compensation established by the Executive Board to perform such duties and services as the Executive Board shall from time to time authorize.

Section 5. Election and Term of Office

The term of the Directors named herein and in the Articles of Incorporation shall expire when their successors have been elected at the first or next annual meeting of Members and are duly qualified. At the first or next annual meeting the members shall elect four (4) directors for a term of three (3) years; two (2) directors for a term of two (2) years and one (1) director for a term of one (1) year; and at each annual meeting thereafter the members shall elect director in accordance with the By-Laws.

Section 6. Vacancies

Vacancies in the Executive Board caused by an reason other than the removal of a director by a vote of members shall be filled by the President until a successor is elected by the members at the next annual meeting to serve out the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 7. Removal of Directors

At a regular meeting or at a special meeting duly called for such purpose (but only after the first regular meeting of members as hereinabove provided) any director may be removed without cause by a vote of sixty percent (60%) of the eligible votes entitled to be cast by members, whether or not present and voting thereon. A successor may then and there be elected to fill a vacancy by majority vote of members present and voting thereon in person or by proxy. Any director whose removal has been proposed by members shall be given an opportunity to be at the meeting. The term of a director who is a member and who becomes more

than sixty (6) days delinquent in payment of any assessments or charges due the association or any director who disposes of his lot in Bonaparte's Retreat I shall automatically be terminated and the President shall appoint his successor as provided in Section 6 of this Article 7.

Section 8. Compensation

No compensation shall be paid to Directors for their services as Directors.

Section 9. Organization Meeting

The first meeting of the executive board comprised of officers and directors shall be held within ten (10) days of such election as a place fixed by the president. No notice shall be necessary to the elected officers and directors in order legally to constitute such meeting, provided a majority shall be present.

Section 10. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Executive Board may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time, by a majority of the Directors, but at least four (4) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Executive Board shall be given top each Director, personally or by mail to his address as it appears on the records of the Association at the time such notice is mailed or personally delivered, at least six (8) days prior to the day named for such meeting.

Section 11. Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President of the Association on three(3) days notice to each director given personally or by mail as hereinabove provided, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the Fresident or Secretary in like manner and on like notice of the written request of at least one-third (1/3) of the Directors.

Section 11A. Annual Budget

An annual budget to be prepared and presented to the members for approval by the executive board.

Any expenditures One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) above the approved budget must be voted upon by the membership at a special meeting of by mail-in vote.

Section 12. Waiver of Notice

Before or at any meeting of the executive board, an director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed the equivalent of the giving of

and the graph

such notices. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the executive board shall be a waiver of notice by him or her of the time. Pace and purpose thereof. If all of the directors are present at any meeting of the executive board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

Section 13. Quorum

At all meetings of the executive board a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the executive board. If at any meeting of the executive board there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At any such meeting, any resumption of business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.

Section 14. Action Without Meeting

Any action taken by the executive board require or permitted to be taken at any meeting may be taken without a meeting if all of the members of the executive board shall consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the executive board.

Section 15. Fidelity Bonds

The executive board may require that all officers and employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds and securities shall furnish adequate fidelity or surety bonds. The premium on such bonds may be paid by the Association.

ARTICLE 8. OFFICERS.

Section 1. Designation of Officers

The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice President, A Secretary and a Treasurer. all of whom shall be elected by the property owners. The President may appoint an assistant secretary and an assistant treasurer and such other as in their judgment may be necessary. The offices of the Secretary and Treasurer may be filled by the same person. All officers so elected must be members in good standing of the Association. In no case shall there be more than seven (7) members of the executive board.

Page 9.

Section 2. Blaction of Officers

The officer of the Association shall be elected annually by the property owners at the annual meeting.

Section 3. Removal of Officers

Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Executive Board, an officer may be removed with cause. and his successor elected at any regular meeting of the Executive Foard called for such purpose.

Section 4. President

The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of Association. He or she shall preside at all meetings of members and of the Executive Board. He or she shall have all of the general responsibilities which are usually vested in the office of the president of a corporation, including, but not limited to, the authority to appoint special committees from among the membership from time to time as he or she may in his discretion, decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. His or her vote shall break all ties within the Association.

Section 5. Vice President

The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his or her duties whenever the President shall be absent.

Section 6. Secretary

The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the executive board and the minutes of all meetings of members. He or she shall have custody of the seal of the Association and he or she shall have charge of the Membership transfer books and of such other books and papers as the executive board may direct. He or she shall, in general, perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary.

Section 7. Treasurer

The Treasurer shall have responsibility for Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for the keeping of full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association. He or she shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name, and to the credit, of the Association is such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Executive Board.

ARTICLE 8. OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors and Former Officers and Directors

The Association shall indemnify every officer or director of the Association and every former officer or director of the Association against any and all expenses, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon any officer or director in connection with any action, suit or other proceedings (including the settlement of any such suit or proceeding if approved by the then Executive Board of the Association) to which he or she may be made a party by reason of being or naving been an officer or director of the Association. The officers and directors of the Association shall not be liable to members for any mistake of judgment, negligence or otherwise, except for this own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The officers and directors of the Association shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract or other commitment made by them in good faith, on behalf of the Association, and the Association shall indemnify and forever hold such officer and director free and harmless against any and all liability to others on account of any such contract or commitment. Any right to indemnification provided fort herein shall not be inclusive of any other rights to which any officer or director of the Association may be entitled.

Section 2. Common or Interested Directors

The Directors shall exercise their responsibilities and duties in good faith and with a view to the interests of the Association. They shall not contract with any individual or corporations that the directors are affiliated with nor may they benefit in any way financially or otherwise from these persons for corporations doing business with or for Association.

ARTICLE 9. MANAGEMENT AND EXPENSES

Section 1. Management and Common Expenses

The Association acting by and through it's officers, shall manage, operate, and maintain the Common Areas of the Subdivision for the benefit of members and the community, shall enforce the provisions of these By-Laws and the Reservations and Restrictions and pursuant thereto shall have the authority to pay:

(a) All operational expenses of the Common Areas including services furnished,

(b) The cost of necessary management and administration, including fees paid to any management agent;

(c) Taxes and assessments levied against the Association or upon any property which it may own or which the Association is otherwise required to pay;
(d) The cost of fire and extended liability insurance on

(d) The cost of fire and extended liability insurance on the Common Areas and the cost of such other insurance as the Association may procure;

(e) The cost of furnishing water, electricity, garbage and trash collection, or other utilities, to the Common Areas;

(f) The cost of funding all reserves established by the Association, including, when appropriate, a general operating reserve or a reserve for replacements;

(g) The cost of repairs, maintenance and replacement of the Common ares; all within the approved line of budget.

Section 2. Resements for Utilities and Related Purposes

The Executive Board is authorized to grant such licenses, easements, or rights-of-way for sewer lines, water lines, electrical cables, telephone and television cables, gas lines, storm drains, underground conduits, easements for slope or such other purposes related the provision of public utilities to the Common Areas as may be considered necessary and appropriate by the Executive Board for the orderly maintenance, preservation and enjoyment of the Common Areas and for the preservation of the health, safety, convenience or welfare of members, their licensees or invitees.

Section 3. Association Rules

There shall be no violation of any rules for the use of the Common Areas or other Association rules. which may from time to time by adopted by the Executive Board and promulgated. Bonaparte's Retreat I Property Owners þe to Association is intended a non-profit corporation, organized and existing for the mutual benefit of its members. The officers, directors, representatives, agents and employees shall refrain, to the extent that they may without substantially abandoning or varying from the essential purpose and function of the corporation, from any action or activity which shall prevent or compromise in any way or to any degree such status of the corporation or its right to redeive donations which may be tax deductible, or which may joopardize its status as an organization whose receipts are exempt from income taxation of every kind. To that end, the Executive Board may authorize and direct the diverting or split off of or the disassociation with any activity or projects which may be, or may be in its opinion, susceptible to being construed as a profit making business activity. No activities shall insure to the pecuniary gain of its members or officers and which shall not be authorized to distribute gains, profits, dividends or assets to any such person, but shall be irrevocably dedicated to social, educational charitable or beneficial purposes.

ARTICLE 10. MISCRLLANGOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Association and the underlying non-profit corporation shall end on the 31st day of each and every December.

Section 2. Books and Accounts

Books and accounts of association shall be kept under the direction of the Treasurer in accordance with accepted accounting practices. The same shall include books with detailed accounts, in chronological order, of the receipts and of the disbursements of the Association and its administration and shall specify the maintenance and repair expenses of the Common Areas and any other expenses incurred.

An account of any reserves established by the Executive Board, any additions thereto and disbursements thereof, shall also be maintained. That amount of any assessment required for payment of any capital expenditures of the Association shall be credited upon the books of the Association to the "Paid-In-Surplus" account as a capital contribution by members.

All expenses must be a part of a line item budget approved by the membership of the Association.

Section 3. Auditing

At the close of each fiscal year the books and records of the Association shall be inspected by a licensed accountant whose report shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted financial reporting standards. Based upon such report, the Association shall furnish its members with annual financial statements reflecting the income, expenditures and reserves of the Association and its condition as the close of such fiscal year.

Section 4. Inspection of Books

The books and accounts of the Association shall be available for examination by members or their duly authorized agents or attorneys, and to first mortgagees of record of any Lot or their duly authorized agents or attorneys during normal business hours and for purposes reasonably related to their interest.

Section 5. Execution of Corporate Documents

With the prior authorization of the Kxecutive Board, all notes and contracts shall be executed on behalf of the corporation by either the President or Vice President, and

PAGE 13.

all checks shall be executed on behalf of the Association by the President or Treasurer, or such other officers, agents or other person as are from time to time so authorized by the Executive Board so long as it is a part of the approved budget.

Section 6. Seal

The Executive Board shall provide a suitable corporate seal containing the name of the Association; which said seal shall be in the charge of the Secretary. If so directed by the Executive Board, a duplicate seal may be kept and used by the Treasurer or any assistant secretary or assistant treasurer.

ARTICLE 11. AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be amended by a vote of sixty per cent (60%) of the eligible votes entitled to be cast by members, at any meeting of members duly called for such purpose. Amendments shall be proposed by the Executive Board or by a petition signed by at least one third (1/3) of members. A description of any proposed amendments shall accompany the notice of any regular or special meeting at which such proposed amendment is to be voted upon.

ARTICLE 12. CONFLICTS

These By-Laws are subordinate and subject to all provisions of the Reservations and Restrictions. In the event of any conflict between these By-Laws and the Reservations and Restrictions, the provisions of the Reservations and Restrictions shall control.

ARTICLE 18. COMMITTEES

There shall be no standing committees of the Association. The President may, however, from time to time appoint such committees as he or she considers necessary or appropriate from the membership of the Association; each of which shall consist of a Chairman and at least two (2) other members. Any committee so appointed shall serve at the pleasure of the President.

The Executive Board shall consist of at least six (6) but no more than seven (7) members.

There shall be:

A President, a Vice President who shall also be in charge of the Club House, a Recording Secretary, a Treasurer, a Building Director, a Pool Director and a Director at Large.

ARTICLE 14. INTERPRETATIVE PROVISIONS

Section 1. Severability

In the event any provision or provisions of these By-Laws shall be determined to be invalid, void or unenforceable, such determination shall not render invalid, "void or unenforceable any other provision hereof which can be given effect.

Section 2. Waiver

No restriction, condition, obligation or provision of these By-Laws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason or any failure or failures to enforce the same.

Section 3. Captions

The captions contained in these By-Laws are for convenience only and are not a part of these By-Laws and are not top be used to interpret or define the provisions of these B y-Laws.

Section 4. Number and Gender

Whenever in these By-Laws the context so requires, the singular number shall include the plural and the converse and the use of any gender shall deemed to include both genders.

The undersigned, being those persons constituting the Executive Board, acknowledge approval of these By-Laws by affixing their signatures hereto.

Dated this 2nd day of August 1999

Nonal Memon President

Vice-President

Reg 6. Keel Secretar

Henda Amith Treasurer

Director-at-Large

_ Pool Director

(menty of Herry

State of SC

Betly D. Wells M. 2006

Inst # 32748 Book 1348Page: 348

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK

I, Such Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Reginald G. Reeks personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is Secretary of Bonaparte's Retreat I Property Owner's Association, Inc., a non-profit North Carolina Corporation, and that by authority duly given and as an act of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by Donald Mimo, its President, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by him/her as its Secretary/Treasurer.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this day of October, 1999.

Russ A Puer Notary Public

My Commission Expires:



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA	١
COUNTY OF BRUNSWICK	

The Foregoing (or annexed) Certificate(s) of LISA A PIVER

Notary(ies) Public is (are) Certified to be Correct.

This Instrument was filed for Registration on this _

in the Book and Page shown on the First Page hereof.

17th Day of

December

1999

ROBERT J. ROBINSON Register of Dee